

Council

Minutes of a meeting of the Council held at The Great Hall at The Guildhall, Northampton, NN1 1DE on Thursday 28 September 2023 at 5.00 pm.

Present:

Councillor John Shephard (Chairman) Councillor Jo Gilford (Vice-Chairman) Councillor Rufia Ashraf Councillor Jamal Alwahabi Councillor Anthony S. Bagot-Webb **Councillor Fiona Baker Councillor Dermot Bambridge Councillor Harry Barrett Councillor William Barter** Councillor Sally Beardsworth Councillor Phil Bignell Councillor Lizzy Bowen Councillor Rebecca Breese Councillor Adam Brown Councillor Muna Cali Councillor Pinder Chauhan Councillor Nazim Choudary Councillor Imran Ahmed Chowdhury BEM **Councillor Paul Clark Councillor Stephen Clarke** Councillor Maggie Clubley **Councillor Fiona Cole** Councillor Raymond Connolly Councillor Karen Cooper **Councillor Daniel Cribbin** Councillor Julie Davenport **Councillor Janice Duffy** Councillor Paul Dyball Councillor Alison Eastwood Councillor Louisa Fowler **Councillor Rupert Frost** Councillor Matt Golby Councillor André González De Savage **Councillor Andrew Grant Councillor Mike Hallam Councillor Enam Hague** Councillor Lauryn Harrington-Carter Councillor Jonathan Harris **Councillor Cheryl Hawes** Councillor Rosie Herring

Councillor Stephen Hibbert Councillor James Hill Councillor Nigel Hinch Councillor Keith Holland-Delamere **Councillor Rosie Humphreys Councillor Cecile Irving-Swift Councillor David James Councillor Koulla Jolley Councillor Paul Joyce Councillor Andrew Kilbride** Councillor Anna King **Councillor Jamie Lane** Councillor Phil Larratt Councillor Daniel Lister Councillor Greg Lunn **Councillor Charles Manners Councillor Peter Matten** Councillor Ian McCord **Councillor Dennis Meredith** Councillor Jonathan Nunn **Councillor Kevin Parker** Councillor Ken Pritchard **Councillor Bob Purser** Councillor Emma Roberts Councillor Sam Rumens Councillor Cathrine Russell **Councillor Lisa Samiotis Councillor Brian Sargeant Councillor Sue Sharps** Councillor David Smith Councillor Zoe Smith **Councillor Richard Solesbury-Timms** Councillor Laura Stevenson **Councillor Danielle Stone Councillor Nick Sturges-Alex Councillor Walter Tarasiewicz** Councillor Mike Warren

Substitute Members:

Also Present:

Apologies for Absence:

Councillor Ann Addison Councillor Azizur Rahman Councillor Alan Chantler Councillor Gareth Eales Councillor Terrie Eales Councillor Penelope Flavell Councillor Terry Gilford Councillor Mark Hughes Councillor Malcolm Longley Councillor Colin Morgan Councillor Charles Morton Councillor Suresh Patel Councillor Wendy Randall Councillor Jake Roberts Councillor Winston Strachan

Officers:

Anna Earnshaw (Chief Executive) Cath Whitehead (Head of Legal & Democratic and Monitoring Officer) Paul Hanson (Head of Democratic Services & Elections) Tracy Tiff (Deputy Democratic Services Manager) Ed Bostock (Democratic Services Officer)

138. Declarations of Interest

None advised.

139. Minutes of Council

The minutes of the meetings held on 29 June and 20 July 2023 were agreed and signed by the Chairman.

140. Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman referenced paragraph 29.4 of the Constitution which related to the matter of standing when making statements at meetings of the Council and noted that in recent months, this rule had not been observed. He asked members to debate and take a vote on debate on a proposal to suspend standing orders in respect of this.

Upon a vote, the proposal to suspend standing orders to allow members to remain seated while speaking at Council and addressing the Chairman was carried.

141. **Public Participation**

- (1) There were no requests to submit petitions.
- (2) The Chairman advised of 3 requests to address Council.

David Garlick addressed Council in relation to motions 1 and 2 and commented that without action, the Council would be contributing to further avoidable ill health and deaths due to poor air quality. He asked that the Council consider implementing lower speed limits in residential areas, 60mph limits on arterial roads in and around

Northampton, cease the licensing of diesel taxis, introduce electric buses and improve active travel.

Dave Pearson addressed Council in relation to motions 1 and 2 and commented that there were 6 areas within West Northamptonshire with "illegally high" levels of air pollution, but no action plans to address the issues. He stated that the political and economic systems that brought on the climate crisis were incapable of solving it and that it was time to put the voice of communities at the heart of decision making. Mr Pearson further stated that the Council should set up a citizen's assembly to address its response to the climate crisis.

Jane Wood addressed Council in relation to motion 2 and commented that, when looking at how the Council operated overall, it seemed like "business as usual" 2 years after a climate emergency was declared by WNC. She stated that the Council had an opportunity to make West Northants cleaner, safer and more resilient to the effects of climate change by supporting the motion.

The Chairman thanked the speakers for their contributions.

142. **Opposition Priority Business**

Councillor Purser proposed and Councillor Z Smith seconded:

"West Northamptonshire Council has the duty as corporate parent to support the Northamptonshire Children's Trust (NCT) in improving the lives of our children in care. We take this opportunity to reaffirm our confidence in and commitment to the senior management and the selfless work of its staff.

Not for the first time, this Council is faced with another overspend by the Trust, currently estimated at £14 million. The vast majority of this overspend (£11.29m) is due to the exploitation of the Trust by profiteering private placement and fostering providers and poor systems within WNC.

This council notes the 2022 report of the Competition and Marketing Authority (CMA) into the Children's Care market, which found a "fundamental failure" in the way private placement providers and Independent Fostering Agencies (IFAs) are making higher profits and charging higher prices whilst vulnerable children are put in inadequate placements which fail to meet their needs. The report highlighted competition should be between private placement providers and not local authorities purchasing services.

The Department for Education charged us in 2020 to wholeheartedly support NCT. We believe this duty also includes protecting both the Trust and this Council from profit-centric providers who are taking advantage of the most vulnerable young people in our area. We cannot continue to empty our precious reserves shoring up what has been declared a 'broken' market.

Therefore, this Council calls upon the Cabinet and Leader of the Council to:

- Offer financial advice support to NCT to ensure their budget is no longer overspent due to the private sector
- Work alongside NCT to produce a report on the current cost of placements to the trust in comparison to a base-budget model
- Assess and install robust financial processes within the Council to ensure both NCT and WNC are not further abused by private placement providers and IFAs
- Invites the trust to conduct a review into the renumeration of in-house foster carers.
- Request the Chief Executive to urgently provide a costed report to Cabinet on the feasibility of WNC developing a prevention and support service for families with young children
- Instruct the Cabinet Members for Housing and Children to liaise with the CEO of NCT to develop options to support those leaving care with independent accommodation
- Appeal our Members of Parliament to meet with the Secretaries of State for Education and Levelling Up, Housing and Communities on the need to implement the recommendations of the CMA's report."

Council debated the motion and the following comments were made:

- Children's Service cost pressure was a national issue; however, Northamptonshire Children's Trust had seen a reduction in cost per head.
- The Council's Finance teams and the Director of Children's Services would soon be visiting the Children's Trust to look over its finances, quality of figures, projections, forecasts and commissioning decisions.
- Appropriate housing for looked after children was needed, and it was noted that 5 applications for children's homes had recently been refused.
- An article in the LGA magazine reported that 5 children's charities had set up the Children's Service Funding Alliance and found that spending on children's services had increased nationally by 8% on the previous year. 81% of this went to crisis management and £4 of every £5 was spent on late interventions.
- Over the last 12 years there had been a 45% decrease in spending on early help and prevention nationally.
- It was suggested that under the new Children's Trust regime, bureaucracy was "seeping in" and children were not at the forefront of decision making.
- A question was asked as to why the administration had watched the Children's Trust struggle for 2 years before taking any action.
- More money should be spent on preventing children from ending up in care.
- It was imperative that the Children's Trust succeeded; the DfE would not hand Children's Services to the Council if it failed.
- The Council was not building children's homes quickly enough to keep up with demand.
- A question was asked of the administration as to whether a meeting had been booked with government ministers in relation to the care market.

Upon a vote, the motion was lost.

143. Cabinet Reports and Record of Decisions Taken by Council

Cabinet Members each highlighted the salient points of their reports. Members made comments and asked questions and the following points were raised:

- The Council's Emissions Reduction Strategy would be forthcoming early in 2024.
- A recent meeting of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel had sat for 5 hours where PC Stephen Mold had admitted to errors of judgement but had done good work otherwise; the administration would continue to work with him.
- Diversity was an important aspect that was being taken on board when developing the bus strategy and the Local Transport Plan.
- Regarding issues around road closures for the recent half-marathon event, it was confirmed that consultation took place with the organisers prior to the event; communication was sent out to the organisers, but no response was received.
- The interim bus policy would be consulted on in the near future. This would be reviewed following consultation on the LTP.
- Concessionary fares were currently under review; some changes were likely. There was some concern around government clawback of finances, however, if this did not happen, the Council may be in a position to provide additional assistance.
- The Council was continuing to press on with the Active Travel Strategy; schemes were being funded and the Council was bidding for additional funding.
- Tree/Flood officer appointments Tree and Nature Recovery Officer posts were out for recruitment, and a Flood Officer post had recently finished going through the job evaluation process and would go out to recruitment in the near future.
- The Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Wellbeing and Health Integration confirmed that he would look into issues relating to the delivery of Household Support Fund vouchers.
- Assurance would be sought on behalf of members in relation to whether the Council had capacity to offer support to vulnerable people when they sought help.
- There were twice the number of hospital admissions in central Northampton due to COPD complications compared to national figures; part of the Council's work was understanding the underlying causes, which also fed into wider work around air quality.
- The Council had followed an informal process with the Children's Trust which allowed some visibility. Confidence was growing continually in the figures that the Trust was quoting.
- The government gave Family Hub 'Start for Life' funding to 75 of the most deprived areas in the country; Northampton, in the context of the wider rural West Northamptonshire area, made it less of a priority. The Council had been assured that it would be included in the next tranche of funding.
- An inspection of the Fostering Service took place at the same time as the Children's Service inspection; the inspection of an independent fostering organisation was separate to those and was the first of that kind. Issues identified had now been addressed.
- It was confirmed that the Northampton Market Square regeneration project was on track for completion in late summer of 2024.

RESOLVED:

Council noted the Cabinet Member reports and the decision records from 11 July and 19 September 2023.

144. Annual Reports from Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Councillor McCord presented the report which asked Council to note the Annual Reports of the three Overview and Scrutiny Committees (Corporate, People and Place) for 2022/2023.

Councillor Bambridge seconded the report.

Members discussed the report and made the following comments:

- There were high levels of apologies at meetings and low levels of participation. It was suggested that if members were struggling to attend meetings or did not have an interest in them, they should discuss this with their group leaders.
- In relation to waterways in Talavera where excess water from new nearby housing estates ran off, there was to be no regeneration contract until 2028 and no maintenance of the rivers and lakes was in place.
- The Scrutiny Committees were commended on their work in relation to LAPs and the modernising of IT systems.
- The Cabinet were able to take several recommendations forward from the Corporate OSC when setting the budget.

RESOLVED:

Council:

a) Noted the Annual Reports 2022/2023 of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees – Corporate, People and Place.

145. Annual Reports from Democracy and Standards Committee

Councillor Grant presented the report which asked Council to note the Annual Report of the Democracy and Standards Committee for 2022/2023.

Councillor Cribbin seconded the report.

Members discussed the report and made the following comments:

• It was requested that a summary of Code of Conduct issues be contained in the report rather than a link.

RESOLVED:

Council:

a) Noted the Annual Report 2022/2023 of the Democracy and Standards Committee.

146. **Community Governance Review – Terms of Reference**

Councillor Grant presented the report which sought Council's agreement of the terms of reference for a community governance review of parish arrangements within West Northamptonshire.

Councillor Kilbride seconded the report.

Members discussed the report and made the following comments:

- A request was made to ensure that there was a solid communication plan in place for ward changes for all areas affected.
- It was requested that the parish of Yardley Gobion be added to the Areas under Review on Appendix 1, paragraph 6.1, subject to officers confirming the inclusion of the area in line with communication received from the parish council.
- There would be plenty of opportunity in the coming months for discussions with members to take place.

RESOLVED:

Council:

- Agreed that the Terms of Reference for a community governance review of parishes in West Northamptonshire, as set out at Appendix 1 of the report, be adopted;
- b) Noted the recommendation of the Democracy and Standards Committee that, rather than establishing a task and finish group to provide democratic input into the review, officers consult relevant ward members when drawing up proposals for consultation and eventual adoption;
- c) Agreed that Yardley Gobion be included in the Areas of Review listed at paragraph 6.1 of Appendix 1, subject to officers confirming the inclusion of the area in line with communication received from the parish council.

147. Updates to the Constitution

Councillor Grant presented the report which sought Council's consideration of the recommendations made by the Democracy and Standards Committee in relation to proposed updates to the Constitution and changes to committees.

Councillor Hinch seconded the report.

Members discussed the report and made the following comments:

- Officers may not be aware of community uses for assets and these assets must not be disposed of without member input.
- A review of the Cabinet system should be imminent if the Council was to be ready for a less centralised system of governance following the 2025 local elections.

RESOLVED:

Council:

- a) Noted and approved the updates to the Constitution as set out in Section 5 of the report; and
- b) Delegated to the Monitoring Officer the power to make these amendments and any consequential amendments that may be necessary.

148. Chief Officer Fixed Term Appointment and Remuneration

Councillor Hallam presented the report which sought Council's approval for a proposed remuneration package in excess of £100,000 for a number of key roles across the Council as temporary agency workers. The report also highlighted potentially senior IT specialists, which may also come into scope.

Councillor Nunn seconded the report.

Members discussed the report and made the following comments:

- There was concern that appointments in the report had already been made and concern about the number of interim appointments hitting the £100,000 mark.
- 3 of the posts were being funded by the Public Health grant and so were not costing the Council any money.

RESOLVED:

1) Council approved the proposed remuneration over £100,00 for the listed roles.

149. Changes to Committee Places

This item was withdrawn from the agenda as the decision required was covered by an existing delegation.

150. Motions

Motion 1

Councillor Joyce proposed and Councillor Stone seconded:

"Poor air quality is among the greatest health threats in West Northamptonshire. The British Heart Foundation attributed 1 in 20 deaths in Northampton to air pollution in 2017 and predicted air pollution would cause 1,700 deaths in Northamptonshire before 2030.

In 2021, the World Health Organization (WHO) updated its guidelines on safe pollution levels. This included a maximum annual average of 5 μ g/m3 for PM2.5, the most dangerous pollutant which causes heart and lung disease and cancers. Recent measurements from IQ Air shows levels in areas of Northampton are worryingly twice this amount.

West Northamptonshire Council have made several commitments to deliver clean air, including signing up to the UK100 Net Zero Pledge in 2022, committing to be 'Clean and Green' in the corporate plan, and inheriting Northampton Borough Council's Northampton Low Emission Strategy (NLES) until 2025. Yet this council still has no overarching policy towards tackling air quality.

Recognized change in pollution levels has been achieved by reducing idling through introducing smart traffic lights and School Streets initiatives. A trial of school streets in London effectively reduced levels of lethal nitrogen dioxide outside schools by 23%, whilst the introduction of smart traffic lights at roadworks in Kent successfully reduced car idling and journey times by up to 41%.

This council recognises:

• Poor air quality is a major problem that is affecting the health of residents in West Northamptonshire and pollutant levels are dangerously above recognised safe levels.

This council resolves to request the Cabinet to:

- Publish a cohesive clean air policy, pulling together the efforts of LAPs, parish councils and community groups, for their meeting in January 2024.
- Commit this council to meet WHO guidelines on safe air pollution levels by 2028.
- Outline its plans for the £292,378 given to WNC to improve air quality for their meeting in December 2023.
- Consider and explore a trial of the School Streets Initiative for West Northants, looking at available sites, appropriate locations and inviting members and local residents to suggest locations to plan and initiate a trial.
- Conduct research into trialling smart traffic light systems for future roadworks in West Northants and any funding available to trial a sensor or AI-based traffic system"

The Chairman notified Council that an amendment to the motion had been received and copies of it had been circulated to members.

Councillor D Smith proposed and Councillor A Brown seconded the amendment.

Amended motion to read:

"Poor air quality is a matter of concern in West Northamptonshire. The British Heart Foundation attributed 1 in 20 deaths in Northampton to air pollution in 2017 and predicted air pollution would cause 1,700 deaths in Northamptonshire before 2030.

West Northamptonshire Council have made several commitments to deliver clean air, including signing up to the UK100 Net Zero Pledge in 2022, committing to be 'Clean and Green' in the corporate plan, and inheriting Northampton Borough Council's Northampton Low Emission Strategy (NLES) until 2025. Yet this council still has no overarching policy towards tackling air quality.

Recognised change in pollution levels has been achieved by reducing idling through introducing smart traffic lights and School Streets initiatives. A trial of school streets

in London effectively reduced levels of harmful nitrogen dioxide outside schools by 23%, whilst the introduction of smart traffic lights at roadworks in Kent successfully reduced car idling and journey times by up to 41%.

This Council recognises that:

• More needs to be done to tackle poor air quality where it is affecting the health of residents in West Northamptonshire and where pollutant levels are above legal limits.

Council therefore endorses the administration's ongoing work to:

- Develop the local evidence base for assessing the health, economic and social impacts of extending the existing smoke control areas in West Northamptonshire through the grant funding of £292,378 awarded to WNC, consulting with parish councils and local communities to inform the data gathering.
- Publish and implement a comprehensive clean air policy as early as possible in 2024.
- Implement a project with public health and active travel colleagues to pilot a programme of schools engagement around reduction of idling and promotion of active travel. In accordance with good scientific practice, the selection of trial sites should be based on health data, air pollution and traffic data.
- Improve traffic management systems to reduce pollution levels linked to idling traffic

In addition Council resolves to request the Cabinet to:

 Commit this council to meet or surpass all relevant legal provisions on safe air pollution levels."

Councillor Joyce, as the proposer of the motion, accepted the amendment.

Council debated the amendment and made the following comments:

- The issue of idling cars was concerning; smart traffic lights were needed as idling vehicles contributed significantly to poor air quality and wasted fuel.
- The motion did not add anything to the work already carried out by the administration.
- It was suggested that the amendment was an attempt to skirt around and dilute the issues faced by those suffering from poor air quality.
- It was disappointing that the school streets concept had been removed and the administration was urged to investigate which schools might be appropriate for having school street trials.

Upon requisition of a vote, the motion as amended was carried.

Motion 2

Councillor Harris proposed and Councillor Humphreys seconded:

"In July 2021, West Northamptonshire Council passed a motion recognising the climate emergency. In December 2021, a resolution was passed to sign up to the

UK100 net zero pledge, reaffirming the council's commitment to deliver a net zero position on its carbon emissions by 2030 and 2045 for the wider West Northants area.

Since that time the scale of the challenge has become greater, and the need for action more urgent. Climate change is driving extreme weather such as heatwaves that cost lives. Wildlife is under extreme pressure, and species loss is accelerating.

The surface temperature of the world's oceans has hit its highest ever level as climate breakdown from burning fossil fuels causes the oceans to heat.

Following the hottest June on record and a series of extreme weather events, including heatwaves in Europe, North America and Asia, and wildfires in Canada and Greece, data from the Copernicus Climate Change Service (C3S*) show that the first three weeks of July have broken several significant records.

This motion therefore offers members the opportunity to renew West Northamptonshire Council's commitment to taking action to tackle the climate and ecological emergency.

Motion

That this Council resolves to redeclare its recognition of the climate emergency, and calls on the executive to:

- a) Fully Integrate consideration of climate mitigation and adaptation, and nature recovery, into all council decision-making; ensuring that all decisions are compatible with the goal of a zero-carbon council by 2030.
- b) Formalise the procedures for this decision-making, with automatic decision referral being made to the Sustainability Manager/and or the Sustainability team for input and contribution to key decisions, in much the same way as finance and legal contribute to sign off of all major decisions.
- c) Commit to taking every opportunity to improve wildlife protection and better management of land for nature, including on council-owned land, therefore ensuring wider biodiversity net gain in line with the forthcoming legislation.
- d) Support and strengthen action with partners, i.e., NPH, towards the goal of a zero-carbon, nature-rich West Northamptonshire by 2045."

The Chairman notified Council that an amendment to the motion had been received and copies of it had been circulated to members.

Councillor Nunn proposed and Councillor D Smith seconded the amendment.

Amended motion to read:

"In July 2021, West Northamptonshire Council passed a motion recognising the climate emergency. In December 2021, a resolution was passed to sign up to the UK100 net zero pledge, reaffirming the council's commitment to deliver a net zero position on its carbon emissions by 2030 and 2045 for the wider West Northants area.

Since that time the scale of the challenge has become greater, and the need for action more urgent. Climate change is driving extreme weather such as heatwaves that cost lives. Wildlife is under extreme pressure, and species loss is accelerating.

The surface temperature of the world's oceans has hit its highest ever level as climate breakdown from burning fossil fuels causes the oceans to heat.

Following the hottest June on record and a series of extreme weather events, including heatwaves in Europe, North America and Asia, and wildfires in Canada and Greece, data from the Copernicus Climate Change Service (C3S*) show that the first three weeks of July have broken several significant records.

This motion therefore offers members the opportunity to renew West Northamptonshire Council's commitment to taking action to tackle the climate and ecological emergency.

That this Council therefore redeclares its recognition of the climate emergency, and calls on the executive to:

- a) Fully Integrate consideration of climate mitigation and adaptation, and nature recovery, into all council decision-making; ensuring that all decisions are compatible with the goal of a zero-carbon council by 2030.
- b) Formalise the procedures for Council and Cabinet decision-making, with automatic decision referral being made to the Sustainability Manager/and or the Sustainability team for input and contribution to key decisions, in much the same way as finance and legal contribute to sign off of all major decisions.
- c) Commit to wider biodiversity net gain in line with the forthcoming legislation.
- d) Support and strengthen action with partners, i.e., NPH, towards the goal of a zero-carbon, nature-rich West Northamptonshire by 2045."

Councillor Harris, as the proposer of the motion, accepted the amendment.

Council debated the amendment and made the following comments:

- The intention of the language used in the motion was unclear.
- Environmental and ecological considerations should be priorities when considering planning applications.
- It was vital that eery decision be taken with climate crisis considerations in mind.
- The motion recommitted the Council to an end goal with no plan, no equality impact assessment and no budget.
- By passing the motion, the Council would be demonstrating that it was serious about its pledges and earn the respect of local residents and environmental groups.
- The Council already had several environmental policies in place, particularly in relation to planning, which were often watered down or discarded in favour of growth.

Upon requisition of a vote, the motion as amended was carried.

Motion 3

Councillor E Roberts proposed and Councillor Z Smith seconded:

""E-scooters have become an integral part of Northampton's transport and play a valuable role in this council's active travel and carbon-reducing schemes by providing cheap, clean and efficient travel for commuters and students.

But the ongoing trial is being repeatedly plagued with riders breaking vital and statutory safety regulations in the town. Residents are repeatedly complaining of underage children using the scooters, of two people on a scooter at one time (so-called double-riding), of scooters parked in dangerous places like verges, and users thinking riding on the pavement is acceptable.

These illegal activities pose a serious risk to the safety of riders, drivers, and pedestrians, especially in the elderly and disabled communities. Since the trial began in 2020, two deaths in Northampton have been linked to e-scooters, whilst a representative of the National Federation of the Blind of the UK said in March that "rider behaviour is not safe for the rider or for any pedestrian" and proposed the trial's immediate termination.

The extension of the current trial until May 2024, agreed with the provider and North Northamptonshire Council in December, was on the condition that additional safety measures were introduced by the provider. Yet residents have also complained of repeat offenders who, despite being reported to the provider, are still seen later riding on pavements or double-riding. Last month, WNC and the provider announced the expansion of the scheme in Northampton to Moulton and Collingtree, despite ongoing concerns from residents over their safety.

This council acknowledges and welcomes the 'We share the road' campaign being run jointly with Northamptonshire Police to raise awareness of the rules of the road for e-scooters, but also recognises that better policing and evaluation of the trial is required. It therefore calls on the Cabinet to:

- Assure the Council it has enacted all of the additional e-scooter trial requirements the Department for Transport introduced in April 2022 to ensure the trials were as safe as possible
- Conduct a full evaluation into the safety measures of e-scooters, including consulting with Northamptonshire Police on better policing of underage and drink-driver users and the widespread problem of poor parking, and their complaints procedure
- Conduct an evaluation into the suitability of Northampton's infrastructure to accommodate e-scooters and e-bikes and how this could be improved should they become legal
- Forward the results of these evaluations to the Members of Parliament for West Northamptonshire to take to Parliament as it continues to discuss and prepare legislation on e-scooters
- Agree to decline any further expansions or extensions of the trial in West Northamptonshire until the above evaluations have been taken place and the Cabinet, Police and communities are reassured that riders, drivers and pedestrians will be safe."

Councillor Larratt proposed and Councillor Gonzalez de Savage seconded that the motion be referred to the Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Council debated the motion and made the following comments:

- It was suggested that profit, not environmental concern, was the main driver for the e-scooter trial.
- E-scooters were often abandoned on paths meaning that pedestrians were unable to use them.
- Leicester City Council had a clear vision for active travel which resulted in well-defined cycle lanes that were used by cyclists and e-scooter users. WNC was falling behind in comparison.
- E-scooters were popular among those who relied on the town's temperamental bus services.
- It was suggested that the Police were struggling to deal with people misusing e-scooters.

Upon requisition of a vote, the proposal to refer the motion to the Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee was carried.

151. Urgent Business (previously agreed with the Chairman)

None advised.

The meeting closed at Time Not Specified

Chair: _____

Date: